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CHAPTER 14. JURISDICTION, VENUE, AND PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS
I. JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS
§ 14:1 Generally
§ 14:2 Both parties are residents of state
§ 14:3 Residence of one party where marriage within the
state
§ 14:4 Residence of one party where marriage outside the
state
§ 14:5 Alien party

II. SERVICE OF SUMMONS
§ 14:6 Generally
§ 14:7 Service of summons with or without complaint
§ 14:8 Proof of service

III. PARTIES
§ 14:9 Generally
§ 14:10 Where spouse is an incompetent or an infant
§ 14:11 Correspondent as party

IV. VENUE
§ 14:12 Generally
§ 14:13 Meaning of “Residence”

V. THE PLEADINGS
A. IN GENERAL
§ 14:14 Generally
§ 14:15 Durational residence requirements
§ 14:16 A valid and subsisting marriage
§ 14:17 Amending complaint to bring action for divorce

B. ACTS RELIED UPON AS GROUND FOR ACTION
§ 14:18 Generally
§ 14:19 Cruel and inhuman treatment
§ 14:20 —Supplemental complaint
§ 14:21 Nonsupport
§ 14:22 Adultery
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§ 14:23 Abandonment

C. THE ANSWER; COUNTERCLAIM
§ 14:24 Generally
§ 14:25 Misconduct of plaintiff
§ 14:26 Counterclaims

VI. TRIAL
§ 14:27 Generally
§ 14:28 Preferences
§ 14:29 Reference to referee
§ 14:30 Disclosure
§ 14:31 Stay
§ 14:32 Effect of death of party
§ 14:33 Excluding public; sealing information
§ 14:34 Decision

VII. EVIDENCE
§ 14:35 Generally
§ 14:36 In cases of cruel and inhuman treatment
§ 14:37 In cases of abandonment

VIII. JUDGMENTS
§ 14:38 Generally
§ 14:39 No judgment by consent
§ 14:40 Judgment by default
§ 14:41 Upon referee’s report
§ 14:42 Separation forever or for limited time
§ 14:43 Costs
§ 14:44 Motion for summary judgment

CHAPTER 15. NATURE OF, GROUNDS FOR, AND EFFECT OF, JUDICIAL
SEPARATION
I. IN GENERAL
§ 15:1 Introduction

II. GROUNDS FOR ACTION
A. IN GENERAL
§ 15:2 Generally

B. CRUEL AND INHUMAN TREATMENT
§ 15:3 Generally
§ 15:4 Course of conduct; one act as cruelty
§ 15:5 Physical harm
§ 15:6 —To children of complainant
§ 15:7 Mental harm
§ 15:8 —Charge of insanity; commitment or attempt to
commit to asylum
§ 15:9 —Charge of infidelity; charge of crime
§ 15:10 Incompatibility of temperament; temperamental
outbursts
§ 15:11 Instituting action for annulment or divorce
§ 15:12 Procuring invalid decree of divorce
§ 15:13 Interference or abuse by relatives
§ 15:14 Insistence on living with relatives
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§ 15:15 Sexual relations between the spouses
§ 15:16 Adultery and indiscreet conduct
§ 15:17 Intoxication and drunkenness
§ 15:18 Religious differences
§ 15:19 Producing abortion
§ 15:20 Conduct rendering cohabitation unsafe or improper
§ 15:21 —Course of conduct
§ 15:22 —Intentional and unintentional acts

C. ABANDONMENT
§ 15:23 Generally
§ 15:24 Intent to abandon
§ 15:25 Period of absence
§ 15:26 Departure without justification
§ 15:27 Constructive abandonment
§ 15:28 —Refusal of intercourse
§ 15:29 Refusal to live at husband’s choice of domicile
§ 15:30 Adultery
§ 15:31 Effect of support of wife after separation
§ 15:32 Effect of bringing of matrimonial action
§ 15:33 Effect of offer or consent to return

D. NONSUPPORT
§ 15:34 Generally
§ 15:35 Effect of abandonment of husband or separation by
consent

E. ADULTERY
§ 15:36 Generally

F. IMPRISONMENT
§ 15:37 Generally

III. EFFECT OF JUDGMENT OF SEPARATION
§ 15:38 Generally
§ 15:39 Judgment of limited separation
§ 15:40 Property rights
§ 15:41 —Joint bank accounts
§ 15:42 —Rights in estate of deceased spouse
§ 15:43 Res judicata

CHAPTER 16. DEFENSES AGAINST JUDICIAL SEPARATION
§ 16:1 Generally
§ 16:2 Valid and subsisting separation agreement
§ 16:3 Void marriage
§ 16:4 Voidable marriage
§ 16:5 Divorce dissolving marriage of parties
§ 16:6 Pendency of prior matrimonial action
§ 16:7 Provocation
§ 16:8 Spouses still living together
§ 16:9 Insanity
§ 16:10 Antenuptial agreement
§ 16:11 Misrepresentation of number of prior marriages
§ 16:12 Misconduct of plaintiff
§ 16:13 —Adultery
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§ 16:14 —Refusal to cohabit
§ 16:15 Condonation
§ 16:16 —Cohabitation as condonation
§ 16:17 —Revival of condoned offenses
§ 16:18 Connivance
§ 16:19 Order in support proceeding
§ 16:20 Statute of limitations; laches
§ 16:21 Critique of legal separation—From the second edition

CHAPTER 17. MODIFICATION AND REVOCATION OF JUDGMENTS OF
SEPARATION
§ 17:1 Modification
§ 17:2 —Provisions for occupancy of real property
§ 17:3 Revocation
§ 17:4 Effect of reconciliation alone
§ 17:5 Opening or vacating default judgments of separation

PART FIVE ANNULMENTS AND DECLARATIONS OF NULLITY OF MARRIAGES
CHAPTER 18. JURISDICTION, VENUE, AND PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS
I. JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS
§ 18:1 Generally
§ 18:2 Residence requirements

II. SERVICE OF SUMMONS
§ 18:3 Generally
§ 18:4 Service by publication
§ 18:5 Service without the state
§ 18:6 Proof of service

III. PARTIES
§ 18:7 Annulment for nonage
§ 18:8 Annulment for physical incapacity
§ 18:9 Annulment for mental illness or mental retardation
§ 18:10 —Next friend
§ 18:11 Annulment for fraud, force, or duress
§ 18:12 In case of void marriage

IV. THE PLEADINGS
A. THE COMPLAINT
§ 18:13 Generally
§ 18:14 Allegations negating cohabitation
§ 18:15 In cases of bigamous marriages
§ 18:16 In cases of nonage
§ 18:17 In cases of physical incapacity
§ 18:18 In cases of want of understanding
§ 18:19 In cases of fraud
§ 18:20 In cases of force or duress

B. THE ANSWER; COUNTERCLAIMS
§ 18:21 Generally
§ 18:22 Statute of limitations
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§ 18:23 Counterclaims

V. THE TRIAL
§ 18:24 Generally
§ 18:25 References
§ 18:26 Stays
§ 18:27 Abatement and effect of death of party
§ 18:28 Disclosure
§ 18:29 Sealing information as to details of action
§ 18:30 Dismissal of actions brought by next friend
§ 18:31 Physical examinations
§ 18:32 Decision

VI. EVIDENCE
§ 18:33 Generally
§ 18:34 Where fraud is alleged as ground
§ 18:35 In cases of bigamous marriages
§ 18:36 Physical Examinations
§ 18:37 In case defendant defaults
§ 18:38 Corroboration
§ 18:39 —Amount and character of corroboration

VII. JUDGMENTS
§ 18:40 Default judgments
§ 18:41 Interlocutory and final judgments
§ 18:42 Upon referee’s report
§ 18:43 Summary judgment

CHAPTER 19. NATURE OF, GROUNDS FOR, AND EFFECT OF, ANNULMENT CTIONS
AND DECLARATIONS OF NULLITY OF MARRIAGES
I. IN GENERAL
§ 19:1 Generally
§ 19:2 As distinguished from other matrimonial actions
§ 19:3 Annulment of marriages contracted outside the state

II. CIRCUMSTANCES RENDERING MARRIAGE VOID
§ 19:4 Generally
§ 19:5 Incestuous marriages
§ 19:6 Marriage where prior marriage undissolved
§ 19:7 Marriage following divorce without permission

III. GROUNDS FOR ANNULMENT OF VOIDABLE MARRIAGES
A. IN GENERAL
§ 19:8 Generally
§ 19:9 Scope of judicial discretion

B. NONAGE
§ 19:10 Generally
§ 19:11 Effect of consent of parents
§ 19:12 Marriage where man was between 18 and 21
§ 19:13 Marriages contracted outside state
§ 19:14 Effect of birth of children
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C. FRAUD
1. In General
§ 19:15 Generally
§ 19:16 Misrepresentation of material facts
§ 19:17 Concealment of material facts
§ 19:18 Promissory misrepresentations
§ 19:19 Reliance on misrepresentation

2. Particular Misrepresentations
§ 19:20 Generally
§ 19:21 As to having children
§ 19:22 As to chastity and continence
§ 19:23 As to religion
§ 19:24 —Religious ceremony
§ 19:25 As to love
§ 19:26 As to prior marital status and marital dissolutions
§ 19:27 As to physical ailments or disease
§ 19:28 As to character, habits, and criminal activities
§ 19:29 As to citizenship and ancestry
§ 19:30 As to sexual relations with spouse
§ 19:31 As to age
§ 19:32 As to paternity of child and pregnancy
§ 19:33 As to financial condition and earnings
§ 19:34 As to providing home and support

D. FORCE OR DURESS
§ 19:35 Generally
§ 19:36 Particular cases of force or duress

E. WANT OF UNDERSTANDING
§ 19:37 Generally
§ 19:38 Requisite degree of mental incapacity

F. PHYSICAL INCAPACITY
§ 19:39 Generally
§ 19:40 What constitutes physical incapacity
§ 19:41 Incurability

IV. EFFECT OF JUDGMENTS OF ANNULMENT
A. IN GENERAL
§ 19:42 Interlocutory judgments
§ 19:43 Final judgments
§ 19:44 —As to use of name
§ 19:45 Property rights
§ 19:46 —Rights in estate of deceased former spouse
§ 19:47 Res judicata

B. LEGITIMACY OF CHILDREN
§ 19:48 Children of annulled marriage
§ 19:49 Children of marriages declared a nullity
§ 19:50 Effect of annulment or nullity of marriage on children
born out-of-wedlock
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CHAPTER 20. DEFENSES AGAINST ACTIONS FOR ANNULMENT OR DECLARATIONS
OF NULLITY OF MARRIAGES
I. IN GENERAL
§ 20:1 Equitable defenses
§ 20:2 Prior judgment of separation
§ 20:3 Ratification of marriage contract
§ 20:4 —In cases of nonage
§ 20:5 Knowledge of physical incapacity or mental illness of
spouse

II. COHABITATION
§ 20:6 In cases of fraud
§ 20:7 In cases of force or duress
§ 20:8 In cases of nonage
§ 20:9 In cases of mental illness
§ 20:10 In cases of void marriages

III. LAPSE OF TIME AND STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS
§ 20:11 Generally
§ 20:12 In cases of fraud
§ 20:13 In cases of force or duress
§ 20:14 In cases of nonage
§ 20:15 In cases of physical incapacity
§ 20:16 In cases of mental illness or mental retardation
§ 20:17 In cases of void marriages

CHAPTER 21. SETTING ASIDE JUDGMENTS OF ANNULMENT; APPEALS;
COLLATERAL ATTACK
§ 21:1 Vacation or setting aside of judgment
§ 21:2 Appeals
§ 21:3 Collateral attack

VOLUME 2 ALIMONY, ETHICAL CONSIDERATIONS AND PROPERTY
PART ONE ALIMONY UNDER DRL § 236 PART A
CHAPTER 22. ALIMONY PENDENTE LITE
I. IN GENERAL
§ 22:1 Introduction—Domestic Relations Law §§ 236 and 236
Part A
§ 22:2 History of alimony statutes in New York—Domestic
Relations Law §§ 236 and 236 Part A
§ 22:3 Nature and purpose of alimony pendente lite
§ 22:4 At what time may alimony pendente lite be granted
§ 22:5 Discretion to award and as to amount
§ 22:6 Duration of alimony pendente lite award
§ 22:7 Effect of award on further support
§ 22:8 Recovery of alimony pendente lite paid where action
terminated in favor of opposite spouse
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II. FACTORS AFFECTING AWARD OF ALIMONY PENDENTE LITE
§ 22:9 Refusal to grant relief requested
§ 22:10 Spouse’s lack of meritorious defense
§ 22:11 Misconduct of spouse seeking support
§ 22:12 Foreign ex parte decree of divorce granted to spouse
§ 22:13 Foreign matrimonial action participated in by spouse
seeking support
§ 22:14 Nonexistence of marital relationship
§ 22:15 Lack of need of spouse seeking support
§ 22:16 Existence of other support agreement
§ 22:17 Spouse’s means
§ 22:18 Parties living together
§ 22:19 Spouse served outside of state

III. PROCEDURE FOR OBTAINING ALIMONY PENDENTE LITE
§ 22:20 Generally
§ 22:21 Reference to referee or Family Court
§ 22:22 Examination before trial as to spouse’s finances

CHAPTER 23. PERMANENT ALIMONY
I. IN GENERAL
§ 23:1 Overview
§ 23:2 Significance of Orr v. Orr on New York alimony law
§ 23:3 Alimony—In general
§ 23:4 Purpose of alimony
§ 23:5 Duration of alimony—Death of spouse
§ 23:6 —Effect of remarriage
§ 23:7 Effect of pendente lite awards
§ 23:8 Maternity expenses
§ 23:9 Lump sum awards
§ 23:10 Payment to third party or agency
§ 23:11 Effect of separation agreements on alimony award
§ 23:12 Effect of separation agreement alimony provision on
judgment of divorce
§ 23:13 Alimony awards where matrimonial relief denied
§ 23:14 Assignability of alimony or maintenance
§ 23:15 Effect of other provisions for support

II. GUIDELINES AS TO DURATION AND AMOUNT
§ 23:16 Discretion of the Court—Factors for exercise of
discretion
§ 23:17 Standard of living during marriage
§ 23:18 Alimony award—Means of obligor—Earning capacity
§ 23:19 —Ability to be self supporting—Means of wife
§ 23:20 Alimony Awards—Long-Term Marriages
§ 23:21 Alimony award—Short-term marriages
§ 23:22 Awards held to be inadequate

III. DEFENSES AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
§ 23:23 Defenses, generally
§ 23:24 Marital misconduct—In general
§ 23:25 —Dual divorces
§ 23:26 —Waiver of bar to alimony by obligor
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§ 23:27 Inability to pay alimony
§ 23:28 Remarriage of recipient
§ 23:29 Cohabitation post-divorce and dum casta clauses,
Domestic Relations Law § 248
§ 23:30 Death of either party
§ 23:31 Time when terminates
§ 23:32 Collateral estoppel and res judicata
§ 23:33 Lack of jurisdiction and void judgments

CHAPTER 24. ENFORCEMENT OF ALIMONY ORDERS AND JUDGMENTS
I. IN GENERAL
§ 24:1 Generally
§ 24:2 Enforcement by Family Court or Supreme Court
§ 24:3 Provisions for security
§ 24:4 Reconciliation as affecting enforcement of alimony in
separation action
§ 24:5 Effect of death of spouse
§ 24:6 Separation agreements incorporated into divorce
judgment

II. DOCKETING MONEY JUDGMENT
§ 24:7 Generally
§ 24:8 Against nonresidents
§ 24:9 Discretion of the Court
§ 24:10 Service of process; notice to spouse
§ 24:11 As an additional remedy
§ 24:12 Venue of motions
§ 24:13 Matters affecting and in defense of enforcement
§ 24:14 —Violation of visitation provisions
§ 24:15 —Waiver of alimony provisions
§ 24:16 —Termination of matrimonial action
§ 24:17 Additional defenses to a money judgment

III. CONTEMPT PROCEEDINGS
A. IN GENERAL
§ 24:18 Generally
§ 24:19 Failure to furnish security
§ 24:20 Where spouse has left the state
§ 24:21 Procedural prerequisites
§ 24:22 —Notice
§ 24:23 Impossibility of enforcement
§ 24:24 Hearing
§ 24:25 Stay of matrimonial proceedings

B. DEFENSE OF CONTEMPT PROCEEDINGS
§ 24:26 Generally
§ 24:27 Waiver of alimony provisions
§ 24:28 Delay in bringing contempt proceedings
§ 24:29 Violation of visitation provisions
§ 24:30 Termination of matrimonial action
§ 24:31 Inability to make payments
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C. PUNISHMENT
§ 24:32 Generally
§ 24:33 Suspension of payments during imprisonment
§ 24:34 Effect of settlement of dispute

IV. SEQUESTRATION, INCOME EXECUTION AND DEDUCTION ORDERS
A. SEQUESTRATION
§ 24:35 Generally
§ 24:36 Sequestration
§ 24:37 Property subject to sequestration
§ 24:38 —Determination of property belonging to spouse
§ 24:39 Substitution of security for property sequestered

B. BEFORE RENDITION OF ORDER OR JUDGMENT FOR ALIMONY—DOMESTIC
RELATIONS LAW § 233
§ 24:40 Generally
§ 24:41 Nature and effect of sequestration order
§ 24:42 Necessity for strict compliance with statute
§ 24:43 —Defendant must be absent from state or
whereabouts unknown
§ 24:44 Spouse must have meritorious cause of action
§ 24:45 Procedure
§ 24:46 The receiver
§ 24:47 Return of property sequestered

C. AFTER RENDITION OF ORDER OR JUDGMENT FOR ALIMONY—DOMESTIC
RELATIONS LAW § 243
§ 24:48 Generally
§ 24:49 Necessity for strict compliance with statute
§ 24:50 The receiver

V. AWARDS IN FOREIGN JUDGMENTS
§ 24:51 Generally
§ 24:52 Execution
§ 24:53 Security, sequestration, and contempt
§ 24:54 Authority to enforce foreign judgments or decrees
§ 24:55 Security, sequestration, and contempt—Judgments of
foreign nations
§ 24:56 Recognition of sister state judgments and orders
§ 24:57 —Where sister state judgment is subject to
modification
§ 24:58 —Uniform support of dependents law
§ 24:59 Registration of foreign judgments—CPLR Article 54
§ 24:60 Registration of foreign country judgments and
orders—CPLR Article 53
§ 24:61 Sister-state support judgments and orders—The full
faith and credit obligation
§ 24:62 —Divisible incidents of divorce
§ 24:63 Foreign country judgments and orders—Comity
§ 24:64 —Res judicata, estoppel, and standing
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CHAPTER 25. MODIFICATION OF ALIMONY ORDERS AND JUDGMENTS
I. IN GENERAL
§ 25:1 Generally
§ 25:2 Proper forum for modification
§ 25:3 Effect of spouse’s departure from state
§ 25:4 Notice to spouse
§ 25:5 Modification of awards in arrears
§ 25:6 Effect of remarriage of recipient
§ 25:7 Modification by agreement of parties
§ 25:8 Awards made by agreement between the parties
§ 25:9 Modification of awards in sister-state judgments

II. MODIFICATION OF PROVISIONS FOR SUPPORT OF SPOUSE
§ 25:10 Generally
§ 25:11 Factors considered by Court on application to modify
§ 25:12 —Change in paying spouse’s financial condition
§ 25:13 —Change in recipient’s financial condition
§ 25:14 —Remarriage of paying spouse
§ 25:15 —Increase in cost of living
§ 25:16 —Subsequent misconduct of recipient—Domestic
Relations Law § 248
§ 25:17 —Shifting of tax burden
§ 25:18 Effect of spouse’s default in payment
§ 25:19 Proof required for modification
§ 25:20 Where no provision for support made in final
judgment

III. MODIFICATION OF CHILD SUPPORT
§ 25:21 Generally
§ 25:22 Factors considered by Court on application to modify
§ 25:23 Where no provision for support made in final
judgment
§ 25:24 Modification of arrears of child support

PART TWO ETHICAL CONSIDERATIONS
CHAPTER 26. RULES OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT AND ETHICAL
CONSIDERATIONS FOR FAMILY LAW ATTORNEYS
I. RULES OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT
§ 26:1 Ethical Considerations—Rules of professional conduct
for family law attorneys
§ 26:2 Rules of Professional Conduct—In general
§ 26:3 Rules of Professional Conduct for Domestic Relations
Matters—In General
§ 26:4 Rules of Professional Conduct—Terminology
§ 26:5 Rule 1.5—Fees and division of fees—Illegal or
excessive fees or expenses
§ 26:6 — — —Special rules for lawyers in domestic relations
matters
§ 26:7 — — —Nonrefundable fee and minimum fee
§ 26:8 — — —Contingent fee
§ 26:9 — — —Requirement of written retainer
§ 26:10 — — —Security interest, confession of judgment or
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lien
§ 26:11 — — —Prohibition of foreclosure of mortgage
§ 26:12 — — —Arbitration of fee disputes
§ 26:13 — — —Division of fees
§ 26:14 Rule 1.6—Confidentiality of information
§ 26:15 Rule 1.8—Current clients: specific conflict of interest
rules—Financial assistance by lawyer
§ 26:16 — —Compensation from third persons for
representing a client
§ 26:17 — —Sexual relations with client
§ 26:18 Rule 1.9 duties to former clients
§ 26:19 Rule 1.12—Specific conflicts of interest for former
judges, arbitrators, or other third-party neutrals
§ 26:20 Rule 1.18—Duties to prospective clients
§ 26:21 Rule 2.4—Lawyer serving as third-party neutral
§ 26:22 Rule 3.5—Maintaining and preserving the
impartiality of tribunals and jurors
§ 26:23 Rule 3.7—Lawyer as witness
§ 26:24 Rule 4.4—Respect for rights of third persons
§ 26:25 Rule 5.4—Professional independence of a lawyer
§ 26:26 Rule 7.1—Advertising
§ 26:27 Rule 7.3—Solicitation and recommendation of
professional employment
§ 26:28 Rule 7.5—Professional notices, letterheads, and
signs—Internet web sites
§ 26:29 — —Domain name
§ 26:30 Rule 3.5—Maintaining and preserving the
impartiality of tribunals and jurors
§ 26:31 Rule 4.2—Communicating with a person represented
by counsel
§ 26:32 Rule 4.3—Communicating with unrepresented
persons
§ 26:33 Rule 7.4—Identification of practice and specialty

II. REGULATIONS GOVERNING CONDUCT OF ATTORNEYS IN DOMESTIC RELATIONS
MATTERS
§ 26:34 Regulations governing attorney conduct in domestic
relations matters—In general
§ 26:35 Application of rules
§ 26:36 Statement of Client’s Rights—22 NYCRR § 1400.2
§ 26:37 Retainer Agreement—Prohibition on nonrefundable
retainer fees—22 NYCRR § 1400.3; 22 NYCRR § 1400.4
§ 26:38 Measures to secure payment of attorney’s fee—
Confession of judgment or lien—22 NYCRR § 1400.5
§ 26:39 Part 137 of the Rules of the Chief Administrator—
Attorney Fee dispute resolution program—Effect of
failure to comply upon right to collect fees
§ 26:40 De Novo review of fee arbitration awards
§ 26:41 Effect of Failure to Comply with 22 NYCRR Part
1400 Upon Attorneys Right to Commence Action for Legal Fees
§ 26:42 Effect of failure to comply with 1400.2 and 1400.3 on
counsel fee applications pursuant to Domestic Relations Law § 237
§ 26:43 Comparison of the rules of professional conduct and
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regulations governing attorney conduct in Domestic
Relations Matters

III. ETHICAL OBLIGATIONS OF ATTORNEYS
§ 26:44 Ethical obligation to sign a consent to change
attorney
§ 26:45 Charging interest on the balance due or use of credit
cards
§ 26:46 Attorneys right to bring plenary action for breach of
contract
§ 26:47 Right of attorney to withdraw as attorney of record
§ 26:48 Thirty day automatic stay—Notice to appoint another
attorney of record
§ 26:49 Written letter of engagement in matters other than
domestic relations matters
§ 26:50 Certification of papers in civil cases
§ 26:51 Posting of Statement of Clients Right for matters
other than domestic relations matters

IV. COSTS AND SANCTIONS FOR FRIVOLOUS CONDUCT
§ 26:52 Imposition of costs and sanctions upon attorneys for
frivolous conduct

CHAPTER 27. ATTORNEY’S LIENS
§ 27:1 Effect of matrimonial, fee arbitration and disciplinary
rules on right to assert retaining lien and charging
lien
§ 27:2 The attorney’s retaining lien
§ 27:3 The attorney’s charging lien
§ 27:4 Enforcement of attorney’s charging lien

PART THREE PROPERTY
CHAPTER 28. MARITAL PROPERTY OF HUSBANDS AND WIVES
§ 28:1 The Common-Law property system relating to
husbands and wives
§ 28:2 —Dower and curtesy
§ 28:3 —Dower and the real property actions and
proceedings law and the real property law
§ 28:4 The common-law property system relating to
husbands and wives—Inheritance rights under the
estates, powers and trusts law
§ 28:5 Effect of divorce, separation or annulment on
revocable dispositions—EPTL § 5-1.4
§ 28:6 Statutory history of spousal rights
§ 28:7 —Property of married women
§ 28:8 —Powers of a married woman
§ 28:9 —Insurance on married person’s life
§ 28:10 —Contracts in contemplation of marriage
§ 28:11 —Necessaries
§ 28:12 —Husband’s liability for wife’s antenuptial debts
§ 28:13 —Spousal conveyances and partition
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§ 28:14 Conveyances to husband and wife
§ 28:15 —Instruments and transactions involving personal
property
§ 28:16 —Spousal immunity abolished
§ 28:17 —Married woman’s right of action for wages

CHAPTER 29. COUNSEL FEES AS NECESSARIES
§ 29:1 Counsel fees as necessaries—In general
§ 29:2 Action for divorce
§ 29:3 Action for separation
§ 29:4 Action for annulment
§ 29:5 Custody proceedings
§ 29:6 Effect of award of counsel fees in matrimonial action
§ 29:7 Recovery where no application for counsel fees made in
matrimonial action

CHAPTER 30. CONFLICT OF LAWS: CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY AND
CHOICE OF LAW
§ 30:1 General principles
§ 30:2 Real property
§ 30:3 Personal property

CHAPTER 31. CONSTRUCTIVE TRUSTS
§ 31:1 Generally
§ 31:2 Significance of constructive trusts for matrimonial
actions
§ 31:3 How title is held
§ 31:4 Constructive trusts on real property
§ 31:5 Emphasis on equities
§ 31:6 Unjust enrichment
§ 31:7 Promise to reconvey
§ 31:8 Confidential relationship and unjust enrichment
§ 31:9 Reconciliation of the cases
§ 31:10 Constructive trust cases

CHAPTER 32. INTERSPOUSAL GIFTS
§ 32:1 Generally
§ 32:2 American authorities
§ 32:3 Household furnishings and furniture
§ 32:4 —Effect of equitable distribution law
§ 32:5 Wedding gifts
§ 32:6 Gifts given in contemplation of a marriage
§ 32:7 Constructive trusts and gifts
§ 32:8 Gifts of realty interests

CHAPTER 33. JOINT BANK ACCOUNTS
§ 33:1 Generally
§ 33:2 Common law rule
§ 33:3 Statutory changes in common law rule
§ 33:4 Section 675 of the Banking Law of New York
§ 33:5 Rebuttable presumption
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§ 33:6 Intention to create a joint tenancy
§ 33:7 Where the issue arises when both tenants are alive
§ 33:8 Where the issue arises after the death of a joint
tenant
§ 33:9 Significance of family relationship between joint
tenants
§ 33:10 Joint account for convenience only

CHAPTER 34. PROPERTY SETTLEMENTS AND AGREEMENTS BETWEEN SPOUSES
I. IN GENERAL
§ 34:1 Introduction
§ 34:2 Laws governing

II. ANTENUPTIAL AGREEMENTS
A. BETWEEN SPOUSES
§ 34:3 Generally
§ 34:4 Consideration
§ 34:5 Necessity of writing
§ 34:6 Necessity for trustee
§ 34:7 Effect of infancy of party
§ 34:8 Requisites as to fair dealing and reasonableness
§ 34:9 —Effect of fraud, misrepresentation, and
overreaching
§ 34:10 Rules of construction
§ 34:11 Subject of antenuptial agreements
§ 34:12 —Support of spouse
§ 34:13 —After-acquired property
§ 34:14 —Children
§ 34:15 Liability for and assignment of debts and rights of
creditors
§ 34:16 Enforcement
§ 34:17 —Who may enforce
§ 34:18 Effect of divorce or separation
§ 34:19 Revocation, release, or cancellation of agreement

B. BY THIRD PERSONS
§ 34:20 Generally
§ 34:21 Consideration
§ 34:22 Enforcement
§ 34:23 —Who may enforce

III. POSTNUPTIAL SETTLEMENTS ORAGREEMENTS
§ 34:24 Generally
§ 34:25 Subjects of postnuptial agreements
§ 34:26 Agreement for benefit of third person
§ 34:27 Effect of divorce

IV. SEPARATION AGREEMENTS
A. IN GENERAL
§ 34:28 Introduction
§ 34:29 Intervention of trustee unnecessary
§ 34:30 Validity
§ 34:31 —Agreement inducing divorce—Three timeframes
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§ 34:32 —Agreement inducing annulment
§ 34:33 —Agreement inducing separation
§ 34:34 —Effect of fraud, overreaching, coercion or
unconscionability
§ 34:35 —Provision for penalty on default
§ 34:36 —Arbitration provisions
§ 34:37 Effect of partial invalidity
§ 34:38 Conflict of laws—Validity, construction, and effect of a
separation agreement

B. REQUISITES
§ 34:39 Application of principles of contract law:
Consideration
§ 34:40 Parties must be living apart or immediately separate
§ 34:41 Adequate provision for support of spouse
§ 34:42 —Effect of inadequate provision
§ 34:43 —Effect of provision exempting spouse from support
liability
§ 34:44 —Provision permitting husband to determine
measure of support
§ 34:45 —Provision for lump sum payment
§ 34:46 —Effect of spouse’s subsequent affluence
§ 34:47 Adequate provision for support of children
§ 34:48 Provision for cessation or change in the amount of
payments

C. CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION AND EFFECT
§ 34:49 Generally
§ 34:50 Agreement as bar to action for separation
§ 34:51 Agreement as bar to action for divorce
§ 34:52 Effect on marital relation
§ 34:53 Effect on obligation to support spouse
§ 34:54 Effect on obligation to support children
§ 34:55 Effect of rights in estate of deceased spouse
§ 34:56 —Right of election against will of spouse
§ 34:57 Assignment of right under provision for support
payments
§ 34:58 Provisions respecting income or earnings of parties
§ 34:59 Provisions relative to life insurance

D. ENFORCEMENT
§ 34:60 Generally
§ 34:61 Specific performance
§ 34:62 Provision relating to life insurance
§ 34:63 Parties to action for enforcement
§ 34:64 Defenses
§ 34:65 —Breach of agreement by party seeking enforcement
§ 34:66 —Subsequent adultery of plaintiff
§ 34:67 —Limitation of action and laches
§ 34:68 —Accord and satisfaction
§ 34:69 —Nonsupport of children by custodial parent

E. TERMINATION, RECISSION, AND MODIFICATION
§ 34:70 Generally
§ 34:71 Repudiation or breach by husband
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§ 34:72 Repudiation or breach by wife
§ 34:73 Obligation to support child
§ 34:74 Reconciliation and cohabitation
§ 34:75 —Effect upon property settlement
§ 34:76 Commencement of matrimonial action and demand
for support
§ 34:77 Subsequent divorce
§ 34:78 —Secured by paying spouse
§ 34:79 Subsequent annulment
§ 34:80 Subsequent judicial separation
§ 34:81 Effect of recipient’s remarriage
§ 34:82 —Where second marriage is invalid
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U.S.C.A. § 9007
§ 72:59 — — — —District Court cases in Second Circuit—
Article 26 and 42 U.S.C.A. § 9007
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§ 73:26 —Cases from other circuits
§ 73:27 Jurisdiction to enforce rights of access—Second
circuit
§ 73:28 —Other circuits
§ 73:29 Pleading requirements
§ 73:30 —Other circuits
§ 73:31 Default judgment
§ 73:32 Removal of state Hague proceedings to federal court
§ 73:33 Discovery
§ 73:34 Federal abstention under the Younger and Colorado
River abstention doctrines—and Anti-Injunction Act
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§ 73:50 —Issue concerning foreign law
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documents
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§ 73:57 — —Other circuits
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location—Second circuit
§ 73:59 —Other circuits
§ 73:60 Judicial notice of foreign law
§ 73:61 Child’s right to appeal
§ 73:62 Jurisdiction of district court to maintain status quo
pending appeal—Second circuit
§ 73:63 Judgment of district court for return—Remedies—
Motion for new trial—Enforcement of judgment
§ 73:64 Return remedy
§ 73:65 Conditional order granting return of child
§ 73:66 Re-return order—Chafin v. Chafin
§ 73:67 Standard of review—Second circuit
§ 73:68 Remand by court of appeals—Change of
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circuit
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Relations Law
§ 76:8 —New York Court Rules
§ 76:9 —Existing Indian Family exception (EIF)
§ 76:10 —Definitions
§ 76:11 —Exclusive Jurisdiction of Tribe over Indian Child
custody proceedings
§ 76:12 —Transfer of foster care or termination of parental
rights proceedings—children not domiciled on
reservation—declination of jurisdiction by tribal
court
§ 76:13 —Transfer proceeding to jurisdiction of tribe—Burden
of Proof
§ 76:14 —Appointment of counsel for parent or Indian
custodian where indigency in removal, placement or
termination proceeding
§ 76:15 —Foster care and termination of parental rights
proceeding—Parental and tribal rights of
intervention
§ 76:16 —Foster care placement or termination of parental
rights—Notice of proceedings—Right to intervention
§ 76:17 — —Efforts to provide Remedial services and
rehabilitative programs—preventive measures
§ 76:18 —Placement preferences for the adoption of Indian
children
§ 76:19 —Foster care or preadoptive placements—Least
restrictive alternative
§ 76:20 — —Tribal resolution for different order of
preference—personal preference considered—
anonymity in application of preferences
§ 76:21 —Placement preferences for the adoption of Indian
children—“Good cause” exception
§ 76:22 — —Social and cultural standards applicable
§ 76:23 — —Record of placement; availability
§ 76:24 —Foster care placement or termination of parental
rights proceeding—Examination of documents by
party
§ 76:25 — —Petition for invalidation of illegal proceedings
§ 76:26 — —Petition to invalidate action
§ 76:27 —Voluntary consent to foster care or termination of
parental rights—Validity of Consent
§ 76:28 —Voluntary consent to foster care or termination of
parental rights-Withdrawal of consent
§ 76:29 —Voluntary Proceeding for termination of parental
rights or adoptive placement—Withdrawal of
consent—Return of custody
§ 76:30 —Final decree of adoption—Collateral attack—
vacation of decree—return of custody—limitations
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§ 76:31 —Full faith and credit to public acts, records, and
judicial proceedings of Indian tribes
§ 76:32 —Involuntary termination of parent’s rights—absence
of a heightened showing of serious harm
§ 76:33 —Foster care placement orders; evidence;
determination of damage to child
§ 76:34 —Parental rights termination orders; evidence;
determination of damage to child
§ 76:35 —Return of the child to the custody of parent or prior
Indian custodian notwithstanding final adoption
§ 76:36 —Return of the child after vacatur of Adoption or
Termination of Parental Rights-Petition—best
interests of child
§ 76:37 —Removal from foster care home—placement
procedure
§ 76:38 Indian Child Welfare Act-Improper removal or
retention of child from Indian parent—Return of
child
§ 76:39 Indian Child Welfare Act—Higher State or Federal
standard applicable to protect rights of parent or
Indian custodian of Indian child
§ 76:40 —Emergency removal or placement of child;
termination; appropriate action
§ 76:41 —Disclosure of tribal affiliation information
§ 76:42 —Agreements between States and Indian tribes
§ 76:43 —Effective date
§ 76:44 Uniform child custody jurisdiction and enforcement
act—In general
§ 76:45 Parental Kidnapping Prevention Act
§ 76:46 Transfers
§ 76:47 Venue
§ 76:48 Change of venue
§ 76:49 Counsel for indigents
§ 76:50 Assignment of counsel
§ 76:51 Right to counsel—Waiver of right to counsel
§ 76:52 —Right to interpreter in Family Court for person who
cannot participate meaningfully

II. COURT PROCEDURE
§ 76:53 Parts of Family Court
§ 76:54 Commencement of Proceeding
§ 76:55 Assistance in Preparing Petition
§ 76:56 Limitation on Access to Family Court
§ 76:57 Format requirements for papers
§ 76:58 Service of process
§ 76:59 Intervention
§ 76:60 Warrants
§ 76:61 Notice of appearance
§ 76:62 Motion Papers
§ 76:63 Individual assignment system
§ 76:64 Qualifications of Family Court judges
§ 76:65 Procedure in Family Court
§ 76:66 Definitions
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III. POWER AND AUTHORITY OF FAMILY COURT JUDGES
A. POWER TO COMPEL PERFORMANCE
§ 76:67 Generally
§ 76:68 Subpoenas and Warrants
§ 76:69 Subpoenas and warrants-Child support subpoena
§ 76:70 Arrest warrants
§ 76:71 Procedure after arrest
§ 76:72 —Emergency power of local criminal court to issue
order of protection
§ 76:73 —Ex parte modification of order of protection by local
criminal court
§ 76:74 Admission to bail
§ 76:75 Out-of-state party
§ 76:76 Effect of personal appearance-Waiver of defective
service
§ 76:77 Appearance by attorney
§ 76:78 Contempts
§ 76:79 Protective Custody for Material Witness

B. GENERAL POWERS
§ 76:80 Interpretation of Part 5, General Powers of the
Family Court

C. PROTECTIVE ORDERS
§ 76:81 Overview
§ 76:82 Application and issuance
§ 76:83 Orders of protection; procedural requirements—
Family Court Act § 154-c
§ 76:84 Service of process request for order of protection
§ 76:85 Full faith and credit to out of state orders of
protection
§ 76:86 Required notice on order of protection
§ 76:87 Translation of order of protection
§ 76:88 Enforcement of order of protection
§ 76:89 Filing of copies of order of protection with law
enforcement agencies
§ 76:90 Answer and counterclaims

D. AUTHORITY FOR ACTIONS OUTSIDE OF COURTROOM
§ 76:91 Overview
§ 76:92 School or institutional visitation
§ 76:93 Community activities
§ 76:94 Judicial immunity

IV. PROVISIONS GOVERNING HEARINGS
A. GENERAL PROVISIONS
§ 76:95 Overview
§ 76:96 Provisions as to children
§ 76:97 Access to Family Court proceedings
§ 76:98 Privacy of records
§ 76:99 Conferences
§ 76:100 Adjournments
§ 76:101 Submission of papers to judge
§ 76:102 Submission of orders for signature
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§ 76:103 Default judgments—Relief from a default in a
Family Court proceeding

B. SUPPORT MAGISTRATES
§ 76:104 Overview
§ 76:105 Assignments and referrals
§ 76:106 Conduct of hearing
§ 76:107 Jurisdiction of Judicial Hearing Officers and
Referees in Family Court
§ 76:108 Expedited process

C. POWERS REGARDING ORDERS GRANTED IN ANOTHER COUNTY
§ 76:109 Enforcement or modification
§ 76:110 Procedure
§ 76:111 Violation of probation

V. ADMINISTRATION OF FAMILY COURT SERVICES
A. SUPPORT BUREAU
§ 76:112 Establishment and purpose
§ 76:113 Duties and powers of support collection unit
§ 76:114 Cooperation by Financial Institutions with Support
Collection Units

B. MEDICAL AND HANDICAPPED SERVICES
§ 76:115 Medical Services
§ 76:116 Children with a developmental disability
§ 76:117 Physically disabled children
§ 76:118 Handicapped children

C. ATTORNEY FOR THE CHILD
§ 76:119 Role of attorney for child
§ 76:120 Attorney for the child—Appointment
§ 76:121 Waiver of Counsel by Child
§ 76:122 Designation
§ 76:123 Duration of designation and compensation
§ 76:124 Rules of court for attorneys for children

D. AUXILIARY SERVICES
§ 76:125 Auxiliary Services
§ 76:126 Probation Service
§ 76:127 Public entity counsel
§ 76:128 Organizational cooperation

CHAPTER 77. CUSTODY PROCEEDINGS IN FAMILY COURT
I. OVERVIEW
§ 77:1 Introduction
§ 77:2 Choice of Family Court-Auxiliary services—Facilities
for children
§ 77:3 Procedural statutes and Uniform Rules of the Family
Court

II. SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION
A. GENERALLY
§ 77:4 Overview
§ 77:5 Concurrent jurisdiction—Supreme Court and Family
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Court
§ 77:6 —Surrogate’s Court and Family Court
§ 77:7 Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction and Enforcement
Act (UCCJEA) and Parental Kidnapping Prevention
Act (PKPA)

B. ORIGINAL JURISDICTION
§ 77:8 Statutory basis
§ 77:9 —Effect of pending matrimonial action
§ 77:10 —Habeas corpus—Generally
§ 77:11 — —Rules of court
§ 77:12 —Visitation by grandparents
§ 77:13 —Visitation with grandchild in intact family
§ 77:14 —Factors considered
§ 77:15 —Effect of adoption on grandparent’s rights of
visitation
§ 77:16 —Sibling visitation

C. REFERRAL JURISDICTION
§ 77:17 Statutory basis—Referral jurisdiction—Matrimonial
cases—Constitutional provisions
§ 77:18 — —Family Court Act provisions
§ 77:19 —Referral Jurisdiction—Procedure
§ 77:20 Referral jurisdiction—Habeas corpus—By parent
§ 77:21 — —Grandparent’s application in matrimonial action
for visitation
§ 77:22 —County Court referrals

D. CUSTODY AND VISITATION IN SUPPORT PROCEEDINGS
§ 77:23 Overview
§ 77:24 Orders of protection with visitation provisions
§ 77:25 Custody and visitation orders
§ 77:26 Effect of criminal court order of protection

III. PARTIES AND STANDING
§ 77:27 Overview
§ 77:28 Nonparents—Generally
§ 77:29 Fathers of children born out-of-wedlock
§ 77:30 Stepparents
§ 77:31 Foster parents

IV. COMMENCEMENT OF PROCEEDING
A. PRELIMINARY CONSIDERATIONS
§ 77:32 Venue-Initial determinations
§ 77:33 Venue-Modification or enforcement proceedings
§ 77:34 Venue-Referrals pursuant to section 462 of the
Family Court Act
§ 77:35 Venue—Transfer of Venue
§ 77:36 Role of probation service
§ 77:37 —Investigations in pending proceedings
§ 77:38 —Liability of probation officers
§ 77:39 Native American children

B. PLEADINGS
§ 77:40 Petition and order to show cause
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§ 77:41 Issuance of summons—Service of process under the
UCCJEA
§ 77:42 Answer to the petition
§ 77:43 Habeas corpus proceedings
§ 77:44 Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act
requirements—Domestic Relations Law § 76-h.
Information to be submitted to court
§ 77:45 Petition for modification or enforcement
§ 77:46 Requests for orders of protection—Answer and
counterclaims

C. ACQUIRING PERSONAL JURISDICTION
§ 77:47 In general
§ 77:48 Service of warrant to compel attendance—Family
Court Act § 153
§ 77:49 —Family Court Act § 671
§ 77:50 Service of writ of habeas corpus
§ 77:51 Writ of Attachment for Child
§ 77:52 Request for order of protection—Service of process
§ 77:53 Interstate proceedings—Uniform Child Custody
Jurisdiction and Enforcement Act
§ 77:54 —Parental Kidnapping Prevention Act

V. TRIALS
A. PRELIMINARY MATTERS
§ 77:55 Generally
§ 77:56 Notice of appearance
§ 77:57 Rights of Pro Se Litigant
§ 77:58 Default in appearance
§ 77:59 Right to counsel for indigent parents in custody
proceedings—Notice of rights
§ 77:60 Right to counsel for indigent parents in custody
proceedings-Effect of denial of right
§ 77:61 Right to counsel for indigent parents in custody
proceedings—Waiver of right
§ 77:62 —Effect of ineffective assistance of counsel
§ 77:63 Right to counsel for indigent parents in custody
proceedings -Presence at every stage of the
proceeding
§ 77:64 Right to counsel for indigent parents in custody
proceedings—Effect of ability to pay for counsel
§ 77:65 Attorney for the child
§ 77:66 Conference with court
§ 77:67 Court ordered examinations by a physician,
psychiatrist or psychologist
§ 77:68 Discovery—Generally
§ 77:69 —Forensic and mental health examinations by
impartial court-designated psychiatrist

B. TEMPORARY ORDERS
§ 77:70 Temporary order of protection
§ 77:71 Temporary custody and visitation—Review all
decisions and reports
§ 77:72 Temporary custody-Considerations
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§ 77:73 Temporary Custody and Visitation—Order on
Consent
§ 77:74 Temporary custody and visitation enforcement
§ 77:75 Temporary custody and visitation—Appeal
§ 77:76 Temporary Custody or Visitation to Murderer
§ 77:77 Custody and visitation—Military service by parent—
effect on child custody orders.

C. HEARING
1. Generally
§ 77:78 Necessity of a Hearing
§ 77:79 Joint hearing of proceedings pursuant to Family
Court Act Article 6 and Article 10-A
§ 77:80 Investigation as to filing of abuse or neglect
proceeding
§ 77:81 Adjournments

2. Evidence
§ 77:82 Hearsay statements of child
§ 77:83 Rule against hearsay-Relaxation of rule in cases
involving abuse and neglect
§ 77:84 In camera interview with child
§ 77:85 Use of probation reports
§ 77:86 Child abuse reports
§ 77:87 Tape recordings

D. DECISIONS AND ORDERS
§ 77:88 Generally—Decisions and findings
§ 77:89 Orders of protection and probation—Generally
§ 77:90 —Issuance and filing with police
§ 77:91 Counsel fees
§ 77:92 Submission of proposed orders

VI. MODIFICATION AND ENFORCEMENT OF ORDERS AND JUDGMENTS
A. JURISDICTION
§ 77:93 Family court orders
§ 77:94 Supreme court orders—In general
§ 77:95 —Referral to Family Court

B. MODIFICATION
§ 77:96 In general
§ 77:97 Out-of-State orders

C. ENFORCEMENT
§ 77:98 Enforcement methods; overview
§ 77:99 Contempt—In general
§ 77:100 —Motion or order to show cause
§ 77:101 —Notice and warning
§ 77:102 —Notice of alleged violations
§ 77:103 —Service of papers
§ 77:104 —Hearing and representation of accused
§ 77:105 —Order of contempt
§ 77:106 —Punishment
§ 77:107 —Circumstances warranting contempt findings
§ 77:108 —Circumstances not warranting contempt findings
§ 77:109 Modification of order as enforcement remedy
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§ 77:110 Enforcement by suspension of maintenance for
violation of visitation or custody order
§ 77:111 Enforcement of sister state orders—Filing under
UCCJEA

CHAPTER 78. SUPPORT PROCEEDINGS—OVERVIEW
A. PRELIMINARY CONSIDERATIONS
§ 78:1 Jurisdiction—Generally
§ 78:2 —Concurrent jurisdiction
§ 78:3 —Effect of pendency of action for divorce, separation
or annulment on petition for support of spouse
§ 78:4 Jurisdiciton—Effect of separation agreement,
judgment of separation, and judgment terminating a
marriage on jurisdiction to award child support
§ 78:5 —Effect of absence of support order on jurisdiction to
award child support
§ 78:6 Procedural statutes and Uniform Rules of the Family
Court
§ 78:7 Venue
§ 78:8 Who may originate proceedings
§ 78:9 —Nonresidents
§ 78:10 Preliminary probation conferences and procedures
§ 78:11 Petition
§ 78:12 —Essential allegations
§ 78:13 Compulsory financial disclosure
§ 78:14 Agreement to support
§ 78:15 Issuance and service of summons
§ 78:16 Issuance of warrant
§ 78:17 Temporary order of protection
§ 78:18 Sequestration of Respondent’s Property

B. DUTIES OF SUPPORT
§ 78:19 Spouses liability for support—Former Family Court
Act § 412—Distinction between support on means
basis and needs basis—In general
§ 78:20 Spouses liability for support on means basis—Former
Family Court Act § 412—In effect until January 22,
2016
§ 78:21 — — —Considerations
§ 78:22 Distinction Between Spousal Support and
Maintenance
§ 78:23 Spousal support guidelines—Family Court Act
§ 412—The 2015 Amendments—Income cap
§ 78:24 — — —In general
§ 78:25 — —Legislative intention
§ 78:26 — —Mandatory application of spousal support
guidelines—Application of the guidelines
§ 78:27 — —Definitions
§ 78:28 — —Determine the income of the parties—Inclusions
in income
§ 78:29 — — —Deductions from income
§ 78:30 — —Calculation of the spousal support guideline
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amount—In general
§ 78:31 — —Spousal support guideline obligation award—
Unjust or Inappropriate
§ 78:32 — — —Alimony deduction repealed after December
31, 2018
§ 78:33 — —Required statement of factors and reasons where
guideline amount is unjust or inappropriate
§ 78:34 — —The fourteen factors in Family Court Act § 412
(6)(a)
§ 78:35 — — —Factor (1): the age and health of the parties
§ 78:36 — — —Factor (2): the present or future earning
capacity of the parties, including a history of limited
participation in the workforce
§ 78:37 — — —Factor (3): the need of one party to incur
education or training expenses
§ 78:38 — — —Factor (4): termination of a child support
award before the termination of the spousal support
award
§ 78:39 — — —Factor (5): the wasteful dissipation of marital
property
§ 78:40 — — —Factor (6): the existence and duration of a
pre-marital joint household or a pre-divorce separate
household
§ 78:41 — — —Factor (7): acts by one party against another
that have inhibited or continue to inhibit a party’s
earning capacity
§ 78:42 — — —Factor (8): the availability and cost of medical
insurance for the parties
§ 78:43 — — —Factor (9): the care of children or
stepchildren, disabled adult children or stepchildren,
elderly parents, or in-laws
§ 78:44 — — —Factor (10): the tax consequences to each
party
§ 78:45 — — —Factor (11): the standard of living of the
parties established during the marriage
§ 78:46 — — —Factor (12): the reduced or lost earning
capacity of the payee as a result of having forgone or
LAW AND THE FAMILY NEW YORK
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delayed education, training, employment, or career
opportunities during the marriage
§ 78:47 — — —Factor (13): the contributions and services of
the payee a spouse, parent, wage earner and
homemaker, and to the career or career potential of
the other party
§ 78:48 — — —Factor (14): any other factor which the court
shall expressly find to be just and proper
§ 78:49 — —Alimony deduction repealed after December 31,
2018
§ 78:50 — —Self-support reserve
§ 78:51 — — —Rebuttable presumption that no Spousal
Support is awarded
§ 78:52 — —Unrepresented parties
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§ 78:53 — —In case of default or where insufficient evidence
§ 78:54 — —Effect upon modification of existing spousal
Support order
§ 78:55 — —Effect upon modification of existing agreement
§ 78:56 — —Modification of spousal support order
§ 78:57 Parents of child—Liability for support of child under
the age of 21—Child Support Standards Act,
effective February 15, 1989—In general
§ 78:58 — — —Child who is recipient of public assistance
§ 78:59 — —Effect of child’s activities—In general
§ 78:60 —Effect of separation agreement, separation, or
termination of marriage
§ 78:61 Stepparents-Liability for support of child
§ 78:62 Grandparents—Liability for support of grandchild

CHAPTER 79. CHILD SUPPORT STANDARDS ACT
A. IN GENERAL
§ 79:1 In general—Child Support Standards Act
§ 79:2 Application of the formula—Presumption of correct
amount of support obligation
§ 79:3 —Combined parental income
§ 79:4 — —Evolution of Current Law
§ 79:5 Definition of Income—Until January 24, 2016
§ 79:6 —After January 24, 2016
§ 79:7 Child support percentage
§ 79:8 Child support calculation—Combined parental income
over statutory cap—The Cassano case
TABLE OF CONTENTS
xxix

§ 79:9 “Add-ons”—In general
§ 79:10 —Child care expenses
§ 79:11 “Add-Ons”—Health Care Expenses
§ 79:12 Private health insurance benefits—Available—
Obligation to exercise option
§ 79:13 Private health insurance—Available—Mandatory
orders
§ 79:14 Private health insurance benefits—Determination of
availability
§ 79:15 Private health insurance—Availability
§ 79:16 —Payment for share of reasonable cash medical
support expenses for additional unreimbursed
expenses
§ 79:17 —Not available—Cash medical support
§ 79:18 —Cash medical support determined under domestic
relations law § 240(1-b)(c)(5)
§ 79:19 Private health insurance benefits—Not available—
Application for state child health insurance program
or medical assistance program
§ 79:20 Private health insurance—Not available—Cash
medical support—Application for state child health
insurance program or medical assistance program—
Managed care coverage
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§ 79:21 — — — —Fee for service coverage
§ 79:22 — — —Child eligible under state child health
insurance program
§ 79:23 Private Health Insurance—Not Available—
Reasonable Health Care Expenses Not Covered by
Insurance
§ 79:24 Private health insurance—Not available—Cash
medical support—Unjust or inappropriate
§ 79:25 Requirements for child support orders—Directions for
health insurance
§ 79:26 “Add-ons”—Educational expenses
§ 79:27 —Non-recurring payments
§ 79:28 Variation from the formula
§ 79:29 Opting out
§ 79:30 Unrepresented parties
§ 79:31 Temporary child support
§ 79:32 Disclosure
§ 79:33 Modification

B. ADJUSTMENT OF CHILD SUPPORT ORDERS
1. RIGHT TO REQUEST A ONE-TIME REVIEW
§ 79:34 Right to request a one-time Review—Family Court
Act § 413(3)(a)—Orders issued prior to September
15, 1989
§ 79:35 Review procedures
§ 79:36 Time to initiate review
§ 79:37 Notice of intention to commence review
§ 79:38 Notice of findings
§ 79:39 Filing proposed order and written objections
§ 79:40 Commencement of family court proceeding
§ 79:41 Notice of findings
§ 79:42 Filing proposed order and written objections
§ 79:43 Commencement of Family Court proceeding
§ 79:44 Commencement of Supreme Court proceeding
§ 79:45 Objections sustained by court
§ 79:46 Objections rejected by court
§ 79:47 Motion to vacate adjusted order
§ 79:48 Ongoing cost of living adjustment

2. RIGHT TO REVIEW AND ADJUSTMENT OF CHILD SUPPORT ORDERS ISSUED ON
BEHALF OF A CHILD IN RECEIPT OF PUBLIC ASSISTANCE, OR CHILD SUPPORT
ENFORCEMENT SERVICES—FAMILY COURT ACT § 413-A
§ 79:49 Notice
§ 79:50 Request
§ 79:51 Adjustment process

3. OBJECTION PROCESS TO COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT
§ 79:52 Timely filing of objections
§ 79:53 —Stay of adjustment after hearing
§ 79:54 —Effect of failure to make objections
§ 79:55 No burden of proof
§ 79:56 Issuance of order
§ 79:57 —Modification of orders
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4. REVIEW AND COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT OF CHILD SUPPORT ORDERS ISSUED ON
BEHALF OF A CHILD IN RECEIPT OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE OR CHILD SUPPORT
ENFORCEMENT SERVICES BY THE SUPPORT COLLECTION UNIT EVERY TWO YEARS
§ 79:58 Notice of right to adjustment review
§ 79:59 Orders subject to review
§ 79:60 Timeframes for review for cost of living adjustment
purposes
§ 79:61 —Calculation of cost of living adjustment
§ 79:62 Adjusted order
§ 79:63 Adjusted order; form
§ 79:64 Effect of failure to make objections
§ 79:65 Effect of making objections

C. HEARINGS
§ 79:66 Right to counsel
§ 79:67 Conduct of hearing
§ 79:68 Default for failure to answer or appear
§ 79:69 Procedural rules and rules of evidence
§ 79:70 Burden of proof—Competent proof
§ 79:71 Adjournment of hearing
§ 79:72 Probation reports
§ 79:73 Referral to work programs
§ 79:74 Testimony by telephone, audio-visual means or other
electronic means
§ 79:75 Hearings before support magistrates—Subject
matter jurisdiction to hear and determine
§ 79:76 —Matters beyond jurisdiction to hear and determine
§ 79:77 —Procedure and rules of evidence
§ 79:78 —Adjournments—Temporary support orders
§ 79:79 —Default
§ 79:80 —Required findings
§ 79:81 —Required referral to judge and temporary support
order
§ 79:82 —Objections to final order of support magistrate
§ 79:83 —Objections—Requirement of final order
§ 79:84 — —Default order
§ 79:85 — —Timeliness of Service
§ 79:86 — —Service of objections upon attorney
§ 79:87 —Objections requirement of final order—Exception
§ 79:88 —Objections—Dated deemed filed
§ 79:89 — —Submission of order and transcript of hearing
§ 79:90 — —Proof of service
§ 79:91 — —Time limitations in Family Court Act § 439(e)
§ 79:92 —Requirement of filing specific objections
§ 79:93 —Submission of New evidence with objections
§ 79:94 —Objections to final order of support magistrate—
Review by court
§ 79:95 —Which order is the appeal taken from?
§ 79:96 —Objections to “final” order of a support magistrate
determining person is in willful violation of an
order and recommends commitment
§ 79:97 —Objections to “final” order of a Support Magistrate
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determining person is in willful violation of an
order and recommends commitment—Postdispositional
hearing
§ 79:98 —Effect of new order upon payments in excess of
support order
§ 79:99 —Appeal from final order
§ 79:100 Order for Temporary Child Support and Spousal
Support
§ 79:101 Testimony of spouse
§ 79:102 Presumption of legitimacy
§ 79:103 Presumption of sufficient means
§ 79:104 Counsel fees
§ 79:105 Expedited Process

D. ORDERS
§ 79:106 Orders of Support—Generally
§ 79:107 Provisions for health & accident insurance—Family
Court Act § 416
§ 79:108 Required health insurance provisions in support
orders—Family Court Act § 416
§ 79:109 Requirements of support order—Family Court Act
§ 440
§ 79:110 Enforcement of support order—Family Court Act
§ 440
§ 79:111 Issuance of income execution and execution for
medical support enforcement—Family Court Act
§ 440
§ 79:112 Income deduction order—Family Court Act § 440
§ 79:113 Review and adjustment of support orders
§ 79:114 Requirements of support orders issued under
Domestic Relations Law § 251, or Family Court Act
Article 4, 5, 5-A or 5-B
§ 79:115 Prima facie evidence of ability to provide support
§ 79:116 Required notice in support order
§ 79:117 Effective date and retroactivity of support orders—
Family Court Act § 449
§ 79:118 Order dismissing petition
§ 79:119 Orders of support—Child support
§ 79:120 —Support by spouse
§ 79:121 Order of support—Support by parent
§ 79:122 Orders of support—Support by relative
§ 79:123 Orders of protection
§ 79:124 Orders of visitation
§ 79:125 Effect of Supreme Court orders on duration of
Family Court custody or visitation order
§ 79:126 Effect of Supreme Court order on Family Court
child support order
§ 79:127 Effect of Supreme Court Order on subsequent
Family Court spousal support order
§ 79:128 Effect of Supreme Court Order on subsequent
Family Court enforcement or modification of
Support Order
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E. COMPLIANCE WITH ORDERS AND MODIFICATION
1. COURT PROCEDURE TO VACATE, MODIFY OR SET ASIDE SUPPORT ORDER
§ 79:129 Continuing Jurisdiction to vacate, modify or set
aside a support order
§ 79:130 Continuing jurisdiction to modify spousal support
and child support under Family Court Act § 412
and § 451
§ 79:131 Continuing jurisdiction to vacate, modify or set
aside a support order—Burden of proof—Hearing
§ 79:132 Duration of spousal support order

2. COURT PROCEDURE ON VIOLATION OF SUPPORT ORDER
§ 79:133 Summons and petition—Violation of court order
§ 79:134 Powers of Family Court on violation of support
order—Family Court Act § 454
§ 79:135 Powers of Family Court on wilful violation of
support order—Family Court Act § 454
§ 79:136 Review of support collection unit denial of challenge
to license suspension
§ 79:137 Right to counsel in support violation proceeding
§ 79:138 Evidentiary hearing before support magistrate—
Violation of support order—Family Court Act § 454
§ 79:139 — —Filing objections with Family Court judge—
Family Court Act § 454—In general
§ 79:140 Procedure before support magistrate—Commitment
for wilful failure to obey order—Family Court Act
§ 454—Wilfulness hearing
§ 79:141 Confirmation hearing by court before final order of
support magistrate—Violation of order—Family
Court Act § 454
§ 79:142 Procedure for confirmation hearing by court of order
of support magistrate—Commitment for willful
failure to obey order—Family Court Act § 454
§ 79:143 Confirmation hearing by court where no
recommendation of Incarceration by support
magistrate—Violation of order—Family Court Act
§ 454
§ 79:144 Suspension and modification of orders of
commitment

F. PROBATION
§ 79:145 Probation

G. SEQUESTRATION
§ 79:146 Order of sequestration on failure to obey support
order
§ 79:147 Lien against property—Authorization for lien
against real and personal property
§ 79:148 Determination of entitlement to lien
§ 79:149 —Assertion of mistake of fact by obligor
§ 79:150 —Effect of no mistake of fact—Stay of enforcement
§ 79:151 —Filing and service of notice of lien
§ 79:152 Voiding of fraudulent transfers of income or property
§ 79:153 Enforcement of support by suspension of licenses—
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In general
§ 79:154 —Family Court Act § 458-a -Suspension of driving
privileges
§ 79:155 —Family Court Act § 458-b—suspension of state
professional, occupational and business licenses
§ 79:156 —Family Court Act § 458-c—Suspension of
recreational licenses

H. DOCKETING OF MONEY JUDGMENT
§ 79:157 Entry and docketing of money judgment
§ 79:158 Amendment of petition to request additional arrears

I. UNDERTAKING
§ 79:159 Undertaking for support
§ 79:160 Procedure as to default
§ 79:161 Forfeitures applied to support of petitioner
§ 79:162 Surrender of respondent by surety
§ 79:163 Termination of surety’s liability
§ 79:164 When new security required
§ 79:165 Effect of Bankruptcy

J. SUPPORT COLLECTION UNIT
1. IN GENERAL
§ 79:166 Generally
§ 79:167 Application for services by individuals not otherwise
eligible tor child support services
§ 79:168 Tax refund offset process
§ 79:169 Assignment of support rights
§ 79:170 Crediting of tax overpayments toward spousal
support—Social Services Law § 111-y
§ 79:171 Crediting of tax overpayments toward child
support—Social Services Law § 111-z

CHAPTER 80. UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT
A. OVERVIEW
§ 80:1 Important historical information
§ 80:2 Historical perspective—Uniform Support of
Dependants Law—Effective until December 31, 1997
§ 80:3 Uniform Support of Dependents Law—Rule of
Construction
§ 80:4 —Jurisdiction and powers of court
§ 80:5 —Liability for support—Support of children
§ 80:6 —Support over age 21
§ 80:7 —Support of spouse
§ 80:8 —Procedure—Generally
§ 80:9 — —Commencement of Proceeding
§ 80:10 — —Hearing
§ 80:11 —Temporary support
§ 80:12 —Procedure—Order of support
§ 80:13 — —Order of visitation
§ 80:14 — —Transmittal of Payments to Petitioner
§ 80:15 — —Violation of or failure to obey order
§ 80:16 — —Appeal
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§ 80:17 —Registration of foreign support orders

B. FEDERAL PREEMPTION
§ 80:18 The Full Faith and Credit for Child Support Orders
Act and Uniform Interstate Family Support Act:
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§ 1052-c
§ 90:118 Dismissal of the petition
§ 90:119 Suspended judgment
§ 90:120 —Effect of respondent’s failure to comply with a
suspended judgment
§ 90:121 Commitment of the child
§ 90:122 —Effect of the child’s desires
§ 90:123 —Effect of the child’s relationship with relatives
§ 90:124 —Determination as to post termination visitation
§ 90:125 Filing the order

H. POST-JUDGMENT PROCEEDINGS
§ 90:126 Setting aside respondent’s default
§ 90:127 Motion or to vacate, reconsider, or modify judgment
§ 90:128 Restoration of parental rights after termination of
parental rights—In General
§ 90:129 —When Petition May Be filed
§ 90:130 —Who May File Petition
§ 90:131 —Service of the Petition
§ 90:132 —Issuance and Service of Summons
§ 90:133 —Filing of the Petition
§ 90:134 —Representation of the Child
§ 90:135 —Burden of Proof by Clear and Convincing
Evidence
§ 90:136 —Statement of Reasons for Disposition
§ 90:137 —Orders of Disposition
§ 90:138 —Social Service Law amendment
§ 90:139 Appeal
§ 90:140 Habeas corpus or custody proceedings
§ 90:141 Article 78 Proceedings

I. THE DESTITUTE CHILDREN’S ACT—ARTICLE 10-C OF THE FAMILY COURT ACT
§ 90:142 Article 10-C of the Family Court Act—The
“Destitute Children’s Act”—In general
§ 90:143 — —Definitions
§ 90:144 — —Originating proceedings—Filing of the petition
§ 90:145 — — —Venue
§ 90:146 — — —Contents of the petition
§ 90:147 — — —Service of summons
§ 90:148 — —Initial appearance and preliminary proceedings
§ 90:149 — —Fact finding
§ 90:150 — —Disposition—Sustain the petition
§ 90:151 — — —Dismiss the petition
§ 90:152 — — —Dispositional Hearing
§ 90:153 — — —Order of Disposition
§ 90:154 — — —Custody or guardianship with relatives or
suitable persons
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CHAPTER 91. APPEALS—APPEALS FROM FAMILY COURT—PRACTICE AND
PROCEDURE
§ 91:1 Overview
§ 91:2 Appealable Orders
§ 91:3 Aggrieved party
§ 91:4 Representation on appeal
§ 91:5 Appeals from family court—Notice of Appeal—Time
to take appeal
§ 91:6 —Form of Notice of appeal
§ 91:7 Appeals from family court—Effect of appeal—stay
§ 91:8 Appeals from family court—Perfecting the appeal—
Printed record or printed brief not required
§ 91:9 —Preferences
§ 91:10 —Special procedures—Duty of counsel
§ 91:11 —Preparation of transcript of proceedings
§ 91:12 —Time to perfect appeal
§ 91:13 —Costs
§ 91:14 —Applicability of civil practice law and rules
§ 91:15 —Practice Rules of the Appellate Division—Part
1250—Poor person relief
§ 91:16 — — —Certification
§ 91:17 — — —Original Record
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